

CHRIST in THE NEW TESTAMENT



Here is a comprehensive list of all the references to Christ in the New Testament (apart from the Gospels). Each verse has been categorised and listed as they appear in the Bible. Use it as a reference guide or for your own personal devotions and study. To meditate on who Christ was and is and is to come and our position in Him is to bring us into a deeper intimacy with Him.

God, who is rich in mercy,
because of His great love with which He loved us,
even when we were dead in trespasses,
made us alive together with Christ
(by grace you have been saved),
and raised us up together,
and made us sit together in the heavenly places in Christ Jesus,
that in the ages to come
He might show the exceeding riches of His grace
in His kindness toward us
in Christ Jesus

Eph 2:4-7

Contents

CHRIST in THE NEW TESTAMENT	1
Alive in Christ	5
Ambassadors for Christ	5
Believe in Christ	5
Blood of Christ	5
Christ as High Priest	5
Christ author and finisher of our faith	5
Christ delivers us	5
Christ died for us	5
Christ dies no more	6
Christ establishes us	6
Christ forgives us	6
Christ gives light of the knowledge of the glory of God	6
Christ has received us	6
Christ is all	6
Christ in us	6
Christ is risen	6
Christ is the image of God	6
Christ makes intercession for us	7
Christ our Hope	7
Christ our life	7
Christ over all	7
Christ raised from the dead	7
Christ removes the veil	7
Christ revealed	7
Christ sacrificed for us	7
Christ sanctifies us	7
Christ seated at the right hand of God	7
Christ the better covenant	7
Christ the Cornerstone	8
Christ the foundation	8
Christ the Head	8
Christ the Light-giver	8
Christ the Mediator	8
Christ the power and wisdom of God	8
Christ the promise by faith	8
Christ the Rock	8

Christ the Son	8
Christ unchanging	8
Christ will appear	8
Christ will confirm us to the end	8
Christ will reign forever	9
Consolation through Christ	9
Created in Christ for good works	9
Crucified to the world by Christ	9
Dead in Christ will rise	9
Dead to the law through Christ	9
Established in Christ	9
Fullness of Christ	9
God shows His kindness in Christ	9
God will judge by Christ	9
God's eternal purpose in Christ	9
Gospel of Christ is the power of God	10
Grace of Christ	10
Having the Spirit of Christ	10
Hidden with Christ	10
Joint heirs with Christ	10
Made complete in Christ	10
Made free in Christ	10
Married to Christ	10
Meekness and gentleness of Christ	10
Mercy and Longsuffering of Christ	10
Mystery of Christ	11
New creation in Christ	11
No condemnation in Christ	11
One in Christ	11
Our bodies are member of Christ	11
Partakers of Christ	11
Patience of Christ	11
Peace through Christ	11
Put on Christ	11
Raised with Christ	11
Redemption is in Christ	11
Reproach for Christ	12
Revelation of Christ	12

Riches of Christ	12
Righteousness by Christ	12
Salvation through Christ	12
Sons through faith in Christ	12
Spiritual blessings in Christ	12
Strength in Christ	12
Suffering of Christ	12
Testimony of Christ	13
The law of Christ	13
The life of Christ is manifested in our bodies	13
The love of Christ	13
The simplicity of Christ	13
To live is Christ	13
Truth in Christ	13
Victory and Overcomers in Christ	13
We are Christ's	13
We are justified by faith in Christ	14
We have the mind of Christ	14
We live through Christ	14
We receive reconciliation through Christ	14
We will reign with Christ	14
We are the fragrance of Christ	14

Alive in Christ

Now if we died with **Christ**, we believe that we shall also live with Him Rom 6:8

Likewise you also, reckon yourselves to be dead indeed to sin, but alive to God in **Christ** Jesus our Lord Rom 6:11

For the wages of sin is death, but the gift of God is eternal life in **Christ** Jesus our Lord Rom 6:23

For as in Adam all die, even so in **Christ** all shall be made alive 1 Cor 15:22

even when we were dead in trespasses, made us alive together with **Christ** Eph 2:5

Ambassadors for Christ

We are ambassadors for **Christ**, as though God were pleading through us: we implore *you* on **Christ**'s behalf, be reconciled to God 2 cor 5:20

Believe in Christ

"it was accounted to him for righteousness." Now it was not written for his sake alone that it was imputed to him, but also for us. It shall be imputed to us who believe in Him who raised up **Jesus** our Lord from the dead **Rom 4:22** And this is His commandment: that we should believe on the name of His Son Jesus **Christ** and love one another **1.1** Jhn 3:23

By this you know the Spirit of God: Every spirit that confesses that Jesus **Christ** has come in the flesh is of God 1 Jhn 4:2

Blood of Christ

But now in **Christ** Jesus you who once were far off have been brought near by the blood of **Christ** Eph 2:13 how much more shall the blood of **Christ**, who through the eternal Spirit offered Himself without spot to God, cleanse your conscience from dead works to serve the living God? Heb 9:14

Therefore, brethren, having boldness to enter the Holiest by the blood of Jesus Heb 10:19

Therefore **Jesus** also, that He might sanctify the people with His own blood, suffered outside the gate **Heb 13:12** Now may the God of peace who brought up our Lord **Jesus** from the dead, that great Shepherd of the sheep, through the blood of the everlasting covenant **Heb 13:20**

you were not redeemed with corruptible things, *like* silver or gold, from your aimless conduct *received* by tradition from your fathers but with the precious blood of **Christ**, as of a lamb without blemish and without spot 1 Pet 1:18

But if we walk in the light as He is in the light, we have fellowship with one another, and the blood of Jesus **Christ** His Son cleanses us from all sin 1 Jhn 1:7

To Him who loved us and washed us from our sins in His own blood Rev 1:5

Christ as High Priest

Seeing then that we have a great High Priest who has passed through the heavens, **Jesus** the Son of God, let us hold fast *our* confession *Heb* 4:14

But **Christ** came *as* High Priest of the good things to come, with the greater and more perfect tabernacle not made with hands, that is, not of this creation *Heb 9:11*

Christ author and finisher of our faith

looking unto **Jesus**, the author and finisher of *our* faith, who for the joy that was set before Him endured the cross, despising the shame, and has sat down at the right hand of the throne of God **Heb 12:2**

Christ delivers us

and to wait for His Son from heaven, whom He raised from the dead, even **Jesus** who delivers us from the wrath to come 1 Thes 1:10

Christ died for us

For when we were still without strength, in due time **Christ** died for the ungodly *Rom 5:6*But God demonstrates His own love toward us, in that while we were still sinners, **Christ** died for us *Rom 5:8* **Christ** died for our sins according to the Scriptures 1 Cor 15:3

But we see **Jesus**, who was made a little lower than the angels, for the suffering of death crowned with glory and honour, that He, by the grace of God, might taste death for everyone Heb 2:9

Christ dies no more

knowing that Christ, having been raised from the dead, dies no more. Death no longer has dominion over Him Rom 6:9

Christ establishes us

Now to Him who is able to establish you according to my gospel and the preaching of Jesus **Christ**, according to the revelation of the mystery kept secret since the world began Rom 16:25

But may the God of all grace, who called us to His eternal glory by **Christ** Jesus, after you have suffered a while, perfect, establish, strengthen, and settle you 1 Pet 5:10

Christ forgives us

And be kind to one another, tender-hearted, forgiving one another, even as God in **Christ** forgave you **Eph 4:32** bearing with one another, and forgiving one another, if anyone has a complaint against another; even as **Christ** forgave you, so you also *must do col 3:13*

My little children, these things I write to you, so that you may not sin. And if anyone sins, we have an Advocate with the Father, Jesus **Christ** the righteous 1 Jhn 2:1

Christ gives light of the knowledge of the glory of God

For it is the God who commanded light to shine out of darkness, who has shone in our hearts to *give* the light of the knowledge of the glory of God in the face of Jesus **Christ** 2 cor 4:6

Christ has received us

Therefore receive one another, just as Christ also received us, to the glory of God Rom 15:7

Christ is all

but Christ is all and in all col 3:11

Christ in us

And if **Christ** *is* in you, the body *is* dead because of sin, but the Spirit *is* life because of righteousness *Rom 8:10*But if the Spirit of Him who raised Jesus from the dead dwells in you, He who raised **Christ** from the dead will also give life to your mortal bodies through His Spirit who dwells in you *Rom 8:11*

But of Him you are in **Christ** Jesus, who became for us wisdom from God—and righteousness and sanctification and redemption 1 cor 1:30

Examine yourselves *as to* whether you are in the faith. Test yourselves. Do you not know yourselves, that Jesus **Christ** is in you? *2 Cor* 13:5

I have been crucified with **Christ**; it is no longer I who live, but **Christ** lives in me; and the *life* which I now live in the flesh I live by faith in the Son of God, who loved me and gave Himself for me Gal 2:20

that Christ may dwell in your hearts through faith Eph 3:17

To them God willed to make known what are the riches of the glory of this mystery among the Gentiles: which is **Christ** in you, the hope of glory *col* 1:27

Christ is risen

But now Christ is risen from the dead, and has become the firstfruits of those who have fallen asleep 1 cor 15:20

Christ is the image of God

lest the light of the gospel of the glory of Christ, who is the image of God, should shine on them 2 cor 4:4

Christ makes intercession for us

Who is he who condemns? It is **Christ** who died, and furthermore is also risen, who is even at the right hand of God, who also makes intercession for us Rom 8:34

For **Christ** has not entered the holy places made with hands, *which are* copies of the true, but into heaven itself, now to appear in the presence of God for us Heb 9:24

Christ our Hope

This *hope* we have as an anchor of the soul, both sure and steadfast, and which enters the *Presence* behind the veil, where the forerunner has entered for us, *even* Jesus Heb 6:19

Christ our life

When Christ who is our life appears, then you also will appear with Him in glory col 3:4

but has now been revealed by the appearing of our Saviour Jesus **Christ**, who has abolished death and brought life and immortality to light through the gospel 2 Tim 1:10

Christ over all

Christ came, who is over all, the eternally blessed God. Amen Rom 9:5

For to this end **Christ** died and rose and lived again, that He might be Lord of both the dead and the living Rom 14:9 at the name of **Jesus** every knee should bow, of those in heaven, and of those on earth, and of those under the earth Phil 2:10

Jesus Christ, the faithful witness, the firstborn from the dead, and the ruler over the kings of the earth Rev 1:5

Christ raised from the dead

Therefore we were buried with Him through baptism into death, that just as **Christ** was raised from the dead by the glory of the Father, even so we also should walk in newness of life Rom 6:4

Christ removes the veil

But their minds were blinded. For until this day the same veil remains unlifted in the reading of the Old Testament, because the *veil* is taken away in **Christ** ² *Cor* ^{3:14}

Christ revealed

to *give* you who are troubled rest with us when the Lord **Jesus** is revealed from heaven with His mighty angels 2 Thes 1:7

Christ sacrificed for us

purge out the old leaven, that you may be a new lump, since you truly are unleavened. For indeed **Christ**, our Passover, was sacrificed for us 1 cor 5:7

Christ sanctifies us

to those who are sanctified in **Christ** Jesus, called *to be* saints, with all who in every place call on the name of Jesus **Christ** our Lord, both theirs and ours 1 cor 1:2

we have been sanctified through the offering of the body of Jesus **Christ** once *for all Heb* 10:10

To those who are called, sanctified by God the Father, and preserved in Jesus Christ Jud 1:1

Christ seated at the right hand of God

which He worked in **Christ** when He raised Him from the dead and seated *Him* at His right hand in the heavenly places Eph 1:20

Christ the better covenant

by so much more Jesus has become a surety of a better covenant Heb 7:22

Christ the Cornerstone

Jesus Christ Himself being the chief cornerstone Eph 2:20

Christ the foundation

For no other foundation can anyone lay than that which is laid, which is Jesus Christ 1 cor 3:11

Christ the Head

the head of every man is **Christ**, the head of woman *is* man, and the head of **Christ** *is* God *1 cor 11:3* speaking the truth in love, may grow up in all things into Him who is the head—**Christ** *Eph 4:15* For the husband is head of the wife, as also **Christ** is head of the church; and He is the Saviour of the body *Eph 5:23* the church is subject to **Christ** *Eph 5:24*

Christ the Light-giver

Therefore He says: "Awake, you who sleep, Arise from the dead, And Christ will give you light Eph 5:14

Christ the Mediator

For there is one God and one Mediator between God and men, the Man **Christ** Jesus 1 Tim 2:5 to **Jesus** the Mediator of the new covenant. Heb 12:24

Christ the power and wisdom of God

to those who are called, both Jews and Greeks, **Christ** the power of God and the wisdom of God 1 cor 1:24
He said to me, "My grace is sufficient for you, for My strength is made perfect in weakness." Therefore most gladly I will rather boast in my infirmities, that the power of **Christ** may rest upon me 2 cor 12:9
Then I heard a loud voice saying in heaven, "Now salvation, and strength, and the kingdom of our God, and the power of His **Christ** have come Rev 12:10

Christ the promise by faith

But the Scripture has confined all under sin, that the promise by faith in Jesus **Christ** might be given to those who believe **Gal 3:22**

Christ the Rock

For they drank of that spiritual Rock that followed them, and that Rock was Christ 1 cor 10:4

Christ the Son

but **Christ** as a Son over His own house, whose house we are if we hold fast the confidence and the rejoicing of the hope firm to the end Heb 3:6

Whoever confesses that Jesus is the Son of God, God abides in him, and he in God 1 Jhn 4:15

Christ unchanging

Jesus Christ is the same yesterday, today, and forever Heb 13:8

Christ will appear

looking for the blessed hope and glorious appearing of our great God and Saviour Jesus **Christ** *Tit 2:13* **Christ** was offered once to bear the sins of many. To those who eagerly wait for Him He will appear a second time, apart from sin, for salvation *Heb 9:28*

Christ will confirm us to the end

even as the testimony of Christ was confirmed in you, so that you come short in no gift, eagerly waiting for the revelation of our Lord Jesus Christ, who will also confirm you to the end, that you may be blameless in the day of our

Lord Jesus Christ will also confirm you to the end, that you may be blameless in the day of our Lord Jesus Christ 1 Cor 1:6-8

Christ will reign forever

Then the seventh angel sounded: And there were loud voices in heaven, saying, "The kingdoms of this world have become *the kingdoms* of our Lord and of His **Christ**, and He shall reign forever and ever! Rev 11:15

Consolation through Christ

For as the sufferings of Christ abound in us, so our consolation also abounds through Christ 2 Cor 1:5

Created in Christ for good works

For we are His workmanship, created in **Christ** Jesus for good works, which God prepared beforehand that we should walk in them *Eph 2:10*

Crucified to the world by Christ

God forbid that I should boast except in the cross of our Lord Jesus **Christ**, by whom the world has been crucified to me, and I to the world **Gal** 6:14

Dead in Christ will rise

For the Lord Himself will descend from heaven with a shout, with the voice of an archangel, and with the trumpet of God. And the dead in **Christ** will rise first 1 Thes 4:16

Dead to the law through Christ

Therefore, my brethren, you also have become dead to the law through the body of **Christ**, that you may be married to another—to Him who was raised from the dead, that we should bear fruit to God Rom 7:4

For **Christ** is the end of the law for righteousness to everyone who believes Rom 10:4

Established in Christ

Now He who establishes us with you in Christ and has anointed us is God 2 cor 1:21

Fullness of Christ

For it pleased the Father that in Him all the fullness should dwell col 1:19

God shows His kindness in Christ

that in the ages to come He might show the exceeding riches of His grace in *His* kindness toward us in **Christ** Jesus *Eph* 2:7

God will judge by Christ

in the day when God will judge the secrets of men by Jesus Christ Rom 2:16

But why do you judge your brother? Or why do you show contempt for your brother? For we shall all stand before the judgment seat of **Christ** Rom 14:10

For we must all appear before the judgment seat of **Christ**, that each one may receive the things *done* in the body, according to what he has done, whether good or bad 2 cor 5:10

I charge you therefore before God and the Lord Jesus **Christ**, who will judge the living and the dead at His appearing and His kingdom 2 Tim 4:1

God's eternal purpose in Christ

according to the eternal purpose which He accomplished in Christ Jesus our Lord Eph 3:11

Gospel of Christ is the power of God

For I am not ashamed of the gospel of **Christ**, for it is the power of God to salvation for everyone who believes

Grace of Christ

the grace of God and the gift by the grace of the one Man, Jesus **Christ**, abounded to many *Rom 5:15* so that as sin reigned in death, even so grace might reign through righteousness to eternal life through Jesus **Christ** our Lord *Rom 5:21*

I thank my God always concerning you for the grace of God which was given to you by **Christ** Jesus *1 cor 1:4*For you know the grace of our Lord Jesus **Christ**, that though He was rich, yet for your sakes He became poor, that you through His poverty might become rich *2 cor 8:9*

But to each one of us grace was given according to the measure of Christ's gift Eph 4:7

And the grace of our Lord was exceedingly abundant, with faith and love which are in **Christ** Jesus 1 Tim 1:14 who has saved us and called us with a holy calling, not according to our works, but according to His own purpose and grace which was given to us in **Christ** Jesus before time began 2 Tim 1:9

You therefore, my son, be strong in the grace that is in Christ Jesus 2 Tim 2:1

Having the Spirit of Christ

But you are not in the flesh but in the Spirit, if indeed the Spirit of God dwells in you. Now if anyone does not have the Spirit of **Christ**, he is not His Rom 8:9

Hidden with Christ

For you died, and your life is hidden with Christ in God col 3:3

Joint heirs with Christ

if children, then heirs—heirs of God and joint heirs with **Christ**, if indeed we suffer with *Him*, that we may also be glorified together Rom 8:17

And if you are **Christ**'s, then you are Abraham's seed, and heirs according to the promise *Gal 3:29*Therefore you are no longer a slave but a son, and if a son, then an heir of God through **Christ** *Gal 4:7*that the Gentiles should be fellow heirs, of the same body, and partakers of His promise in **Christ** through the gospel *Eph 3:6*

Made complete in Christ

make you complete in every good work to do His will, working in you what is well pleasing in His sight, through Jesus **Christ** Heb 13:21

Made free in Christ

For the law of the Spirit of life in **Christ** Jesus has made me free from the law of sin and death Rom 8:2 Stand fast therefore in the liberty by which **Christ** has made us free Gal 5:1

Married to Christ

I have betrothed you to one husband, that I may present you as a chaste virgin to Christ 2 cor 11:2

Meekness and gentleness of Christ

Now I, Paul, myself am pleading with you by the meekness and gentleness of Christ 2 cor 10:1

Mercy and Longsuffering of Christ

for this reason I obtained mercy, that in me first Jesus **Christ** might show all longsuffering 1 Tim 1:16

Blessed be the God and Father of our Lord Jesus **Christ**, who according to His abundant mercy has begotten us again to a living hope through the resurrection of Jesus **Christ** from the dead 1 Pet 1:3

keep yourselves in the love of God, looking for the mercy of our Lord Jesus Christ unto eternal life Jud 1:21

Mystery of Christ

and to make all see what is the fellowship of the mystery, which from the beginning of the ages has been hidden in God who created all things through Jesus **Christ** Eph 3:9

New creation in Christ

Therefore, if anyone is in **Christ**, he is a new creation; old things have passed away; behold, all things have become new 2 cor 5:17

No condemnation in Christ

There is therefore now no condemnation to those who are in **Christ** Jesus, who do not walk according to the flesh, but according to the Spirit Rom 8:1

One in Christ

so we, being many, are one body in Christ, and individually members of one another Rom 12:5

There is neither Jew nor Greek, there is neither slave nor free, there is neither male nor female; for you are all one in **Christ** Jesus *Gal* 3:28

in the dispensation of the fullness of the times He might gather together in one all things in **Christ**, both which are in heaven and which are on earth—in Him *Eph 1:10*

Our bodies are member of Christ

Do you not know that your bodies are members of Christ? 1 cor 6:15

as the body is one and has many members, but all the members of that one body, being many, are one body, so also is **Christ** 1 Cor 12:12

Now you are the body of Christ, and members individually 1 cor 12:27

Partakers of Christ

For we have become partakers of Christ if we hold the beginning of our confidence steadfast to the end Heb 3:14

Patience of Christ

Now may the Lord direct your hearts into the love of God and into the patience of **Christ 2** Thes 3:5

I, John, both your brother and companion in the tribulation and kingdom and patience of Jesus **Christ Rev** 1:9

Peace through Christ

having been justified by faith, we have peace with God through our Lord Jesus **Christ** Rom 5:1

He Himself is our peace, who has made both one, and has broken down the middle wall of separation Eph 2:14

and the peace of God, which surpasses all understanding, will guard your hearts and minds through **Christ** Jesus Phil
4:7

Put on Christ

But put on the Lord Jesus **Christ**, and make no provision for the flesh, to *fulfil its* lusts *Rom 13:14* For as many of you as were baptized into **Christ** have put on **Christ** *Gal 3:27*

Raised with Christ

He who raised up the Lord **Jesus** will also raise us up with **Jesus**, and will present *us* with you *2 cor 4:14* and raised *us* up together, and made *us* sit together in the heavenly *places* in **Christ** Jesus *Eph 2:6* If then you were raised with **Christ**, seek those things which are above, where **Christ** is, sitting at the right hand of God *col 3:1*

Redemption is in Christ

being justified freely by His grace through the redemption that is in Christ Jesus Rom 3:21

Christ has redeemed us from the curse of the law, having become a curse for us Gal 3:13

Reproach for Christ

If you are reproached for the name of **Christ**, blessed *are you*, for the Spirit of glory and of God rests upon you. On their part He is blasphemed, but on your part He is glorified 1 Pet 4:14

Revelation of Christ

I neither received it from man, nor was I taught *it*, but *it came* through the revelation of Jesus **Christ** *Gal* 1:12 Therefore gird up the loins of your mind, be sober, and rest *your* hope fully upon the grace that is to be brought to you at the revelation of Jesus **Christ** 1 Pet 1:13

Riches of Christ

To me, who am less than the least of all the saints, this grace was given, that I should preach among the Gentiles the unsearchable riches of **Christ** *Eph* 3:8

And my God shall supply all your need according to His riches in glory by Christ Jesus Phil 4:19

Righteousness by Christ

being filled with the fruits of righteousness which *are* by Jesus **Christ** *Phil* 1:11 and be found in Him, not having my own righteousness, which *is* from the law, but that which *is* through faith in **Christ**, the righteousness which is from God by faith *Phil* 3:9

Salvation through Christ

that if you confess with your mouth the Lord **Jesus** and believe in your heart that God has raised Him from the dead, you will be saved **Rom 10:9**

For God did not appoint us to wrath, but to obtain salvation through our Lord Jesus Christ 1 Thes 5:9

This *is* a faithful saying and worthy of all acceptance, that **Christ** Jesus came into the world to save sinners 1 Tim 1:15 and that from childhood you have known the Holy Scriptures, which are able to make you wise for salvation through faith which is in **Christ** Jesus 2 Tim 3:15

Sons through faith in Christ

For you are all sons of God through faith in Christ Jesus Gal 3:26

having predestined us to adoption as sons by Jesus Christ to Himself, according to the good pleasure of His will Eph 1:5

Spiritual blessings in Christ

Blessed *be* the God and Father of our Lord Jesus **Christ**, who has blessed us with every spiritual blessing in the heavenly *places* in **Christ** *Eph* 1:3

Strength in Christ

I take pleasure in infirmities, in reproaches, in needs, in persecutions, in distresses, for **Christ**'s sake. For when I am weak, then I am strong 2 cor 12:10

I can do all things through Christ who strengthens me Phil 4:13

Suffering of Christ

For to this you were called, because **Christ** also suffered for us, leaving us an example, that you should follow His steps 1 Pet 2:21

For **Christ** also suffered once for sins, the just for the unjust, that He might bring us to God, being put to death in the flesh but made alive by the Spirit 1 Pet 3:18

Therefore, since **Christ** suffered for us in the flesh, arm yourselves also with the same mind, for he who has suffered in the flesh has ceased from sin 1 Pet 4:1

but rejoice to the extent that you partake of **Christ**'s sufferings, that when His glory is revealed, you may also be glad with exceeding joy 1 Pet 4:13

Testimony of Christ

For the testimony of Jesus is the spirit of prophecy Rev 19:10

The law of Christ

Bear one another's burdens, and so fulfil the law of Christ Gal 6:2

The life of Christ is manifested in our bodies

always carrying about in the body the dying of the Lord **Jesus**, that the life of **Jesus** also may be manifested in our body 2 Cor 4:10

For we who live are always delivered to death for **Jesus**' sake, that the life of **Jesus** also may be manifested in our mortal flesh 2 cor 4:11

The love of Christ

Who shall separate us from the love of **Christ**? *Shall* tribulation, or distress, or persecution, or famine, or nakedness, or peril, or sword? *Rom 8:35*

nor height nor depth, nor any other created thing, shall be able to separate us from the love of God which is in **Christ** Jesus our Lord Rom 8:39

For the love of Christ compels us 2 Cor 5:14

For in **Christ** Jesus neither circumcision nor uncircumcision avails anything, but faith working through love *Gal* 5:6 to know the love of **Christ** which passes knowledge; that you may be filled with all the fullness of God *Eph* 3:19 And walk in love, as **Christ** also has loved us and given Himself for us, an offering and a sacrifice to God for a sweet-smelling aroma *Eph* 5:2

Husbands, love your wives, just as **Christ** also loved the church and gave Himself for her *Eph* 5:25
Hold fast the pattern of sound words which you have heard from me, in faith and love which are in **Christ** Jesus 2 *Tim* 1:13

The simplicity of Christ

But I fear, lest somehow, as the serpent deceived Eve by his craftiness, so your minds may be corrupted from the simplicity that is in **Christ** 2 cor 11:3

To live is Christ

For to me, to live is Christ, and to die is gain Phil 1:21

Truth in Christ

if indeed you have heard Him and have been taught by Him, as the truth is in Jesus Eph 4:21

And we know that the Son of God has come and has given us an understanding, that we may know Him who is true; and we are in Him who is true, in His Son Jesus **Christ 1 Jhn 5:20**

Victory and Overcomers in Christ

But thanks be to God, who gives us the victory through our Lord Jesus Christ 1 cor 15:57

Now thanks be to God who always leads us in triumph in **Christ**, and through us diffuses the fragrance of His knowledge in every place 2 cor 2:14

Who is he who overcomes the world, but he who believes that Jesus is the Son of God? 1 Jhn 5:5

We are Christ's

you are Christ's, and Christ is God's 1 cor 3:23

those who are Christ's have crucified the flesh with its passions and desires Gal 5:24

We are justified by faith in Christ

to demonstrate at the present time His righteousness, that He might be just and the justifier of the one who has faith in **Jesus** Rom 3:26

And such were some of you. But you were washed, but you were sanctified, but you were justified in the name of the Lord **Jesus** 1 cor 6:11

knowing that a man is not justified by the works of the law but by faith in Jesus **Christ**, even we have believed in **Christ** Jesus, that we might be justified by faith in **Christ** *Gal* 2:16

Therefore the law was our tutor to bring us to Christ, that we might be justified by faith Gal 3:24

We have the mind of Christ

For "who has known the mind of the Lord that he may instruct Him?" But we have the mind of Christ 1 Cor 2:16

We live through Christ

yet for us *there is* one God, the Father, of whom *are* all things, and we for Him; and one Lord Jesus **Christ**, through whom *are* all things, and through whom we *live* 1 cor 8:6

We receive reconciliation through Christ

we also rejoice in God through our Lord Jesus **Christ**, through whom we have now received the reconciliation *Rom 5:11* Now all things *are* of God, who has reconciled us to Himself through Jesus **Christ**, and has given us the ministry of reconciliation *2 Cor 5:18*

God was in **Christ** reconciling the world to Himself, not imputing their trespasses to them, and has committed to us the word of reconciliation 2 cor 5:19

We will reign with Christ

those who receive abundance of grace and of the gift of righteousness will reign in life through the One, Jesus Christ Rom 5:17

And I saw thrones, and they sat on them, and judgment was committed to them. Then I saw the souls of those who had been beheaded for their witness to Jesus and for the word of God, who had not worshiped the beast or his image, and had not received his mark on their foreheads or on their hands. And they lived and reigned with **Christ** for a thousand years Rev 20:4

Blessed and holy is he who has part in the first resurrection. Over such the second death has no power, but they shall be priests of God and of **Christ**, and shall reign with Him a thousand years Rev 20:6

We are the fragrance of Christ

For we are to God the fragrance of **Christ** among those who are being saved and among those who are perishing 2 cor 2:15